
 

COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Wednesday, September 10, 2025 

Minutes 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person and via Zoom at 

County Hall 

12 Court Street 

Keene NH, 03431 

 

Zoom Call-in Number: +1 646 558 8656 

Meeting ID: 409 748 8803 

Pin #: 603123 

Start Time 8:30 AM 

 

 

Present: Commissioners Terry Clark, Claudia Stewart, and Skipper DiBernardo 

Absent: 

Staff: County Administrator Coates, Finance Director Trombly, HR Director May, Director of 

Executive Services/Communications Bernstein, CCEMS Chief Kreamer, and Superintendent 

Phillips 

Guests:  

 

Public Comments 

Upon recognition from the Chair, a Public Comment on topics of interest may be made. 

 

I. Elected Officials & Department Head Updates 

To receive, as informational, departmental updates requiring Commissioner review, 

participation, approval, and impactful departmental and operational issues. 

 

1: HR Director May said that we have contracted with three nurses through Visa Solutions. 

One is expected near the end of the Fall, and two others are expected within nine months.  

 

May said she feels as though the relationship with Visa Solutions has been going well for the 

last few weeks.  

 

County Administrator Coates said he has been working with Kate Horgan of the NHAC and 

the Governor’s office to discuss hurdles with nursing licensure.  

II. Scheduled Items 

 

Master Agenda Item #1291: Signing of TAN/LOC Paperwork – S. Trombly 

Action Expected: The Commissioners will sign the Tax Anticipation Note/Line of Credit 

paperwork.  

 

1: The Commissioners signed the $14,500,000 tax anticipation note for the rest of the 

year.  



 

County Administrator 

Weekly Operations Report - The County Administrator will update the Commissioners on 

activities that have taken place since the previous meeting. 

 

1: County Administrator Coates said he met with the Community Kitchen (CK) this 

week to give them the money that was appropriated by the Commissioners and the 

Delegation. 

 

The Community Kitchen said they will be increasing the “pop-ups” throughout the 

County. In September the CK saw an increase of about 200 people looking for their 

services.  

 

They have been fundraising for a refrigerator truck. The refrigerator truck will be used 

to bolster their own programs, as well as support smaller food banks throughout the 

region.  

 

Commissioner Stewart asked if the CK had any restrictions or means testing for 

individuals looking for food/services.  

 

Coates said he did not believe so. 

 

Stewart said she would like to discuss this further with the Community Kitchen staff 

when they attend a future Commissioners or Delegation meeting.  

 

2: Coates referenced the fact that the Commissioners were contacted by a reporter from 

the Boston Globe about coordination with Immigration Customs Enforcement.  

 

Coates presented a document answering the questions from the Boston Globe.  

 

“Has the federal government communicated with Cheshire County officials about 

potentially using the local jail to house ICE detainees?” 

 

“Have county officials decided whether to agree to house ICE detainees at the local jail? 

(If so, when? If not, is that idea up for consideration?)” 

 

“Where can I find more information about the details of your county's discussions about 

housing ICE detainees and any proposal being rejected or approved?” 

 

Commissioner Clark said he is happy to not be working with ICE as he believes what 

they are doing is unconstitutional.  

 

Commissioners Stewart and DiBernardo stated they would like to hear about current 

regulations and standards from ICE directly.  

 



Coates said he will reach out to counterparts throughout other NH Counties who have 

experience with ICE.  

 

3: Coates said Keene Housing will be coming forward before the Commissioners to 

discuss a workforce housing project in Jaffrey.  

 

This would potentially be a pass through the County which would utilize the County 

Grants Department.  

 

Coates confirmed he will not be involved in the discussion since he is Chair of the 

Keene Housing Board.  

 

4: Coates said Don Bliss of Municipal Resources Inc, the Chair of Southwest NH 

District Fire Mutual Aid (SWNNHDFMA), and the Chief of SWNHDFMA will attend 

the Commissioner’s meeting on September 17 to hear the Commissioner’s concerns.  

 

5: Coates said Mayor Kahn will be attending the meeting on September 17.  

 

6: Coates said he met with the UNH Forest Resources State Specialist Steven Roberge 

to discuss timber harvests for the health of forests within County property.  

 

The County will start with the Chesterfield property and move on to Westmoreland. 

 

7: Coates said survey has arrived at Maplewood Nursing Home to ensure everything is 

up to the standards of the state.   

 

HR Director May said the first day of the survey went extraordinarily well.  

 

8: Coates said Grants Manager Bansley said that she is seeing less and less grants at the 

federal level.  

 

9: Coates suggested pooling healthcare with other nearby County governments.  

 

Finance Director Trombly said she did not know if this would be difficult but she will 

reach out to the Richards Group for more information.  

 

III. Old Business 

 

IV. New Business 

 

1: Chief of CCEMS Kreamer informed the Commissioners that there has been a significant 

increase of high acuity calls for CCEMS.  

 

Kreamer praised his team for the high level of care and attention they have been giving to 

these calls.  

 



Kreamer noted that a CCEMS crew had a four-minute response time at the Marlborough golf 

cart rollover. 

 

V. Consent Agenda Items: 

Vote to accept the Weekly Manifests and Minutes of September 3, 2025 

 

Commissioner Clark made a motion to approve the manifests and minutes of September 3, 

and Commissioner Stewart seconded. Upon a roll call vote the motion passed unanimously. 

 

VI. Calendar 

Action Expected: To accept the calendar as informational and to make necessary 

changes/additions. 

 

VII. General Discussion for Commissioners 

VIII. Nonpublic Sessions: 

 

At 10:13AM Commissioner Clark made a motion to enter into a non-public session 

pursuant to RSA 91-A:3, II (a). Commissioner Stewart seconded. Upon a roll call vote 

the motion passed unanimously.  

 

At 10:25AM the Commissioners voted unanimously to re-enter the public session.  

 

As a result of the non-public the Commissioners voted unanimously to uphold the 

termination recommendation from Superintendent Phillips effective September 10, 2025.  

IX. Adjournment 

At 10:45AM Commissioner Clark made a motion to adjourn, and Commissioner 

DiBernardo seconded. Upon a roll call vote the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Minutes Recorded by: 

Davis Bernstein  

Director of Executive Services & Communications 

 

Minutes Reviewed by: 

Commissioner DiBernardo 
 


